
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes – January 11, 2016 

 
 

Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 
 
The regular meeting of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) was called to order at 7:02 p.m. 
by Vice Chairman Keith Thibault. Present were Vice Chairman Thibault, Bob Mitchell, Bryan Rudgers, and 
Alternates Shane Bryant and Marty Geheran.  Planning and Community Development Director Sara 
Carbonneau was also present and served as the Secretary Pro Tem.  Carbonneau called the roll and read 
the Agenda for the meeting. 
 
Thibault seated Bryant for Sarah Tatro and Geheran for Bill Hutwelker.   
 
Others Present:  Terry Mark, owner of Clearwater Pool & Spa 
 
Minutes:   

• Motion by Rudgers to approve the Minutes for the meeting of December 21, 2015.  Seconded 
by Mitchell.  Vote all in favor with Geheran abstaining.  Motion passed. 
 

Public Hearing (Variance Application)  
Terry Mark/Clearwater Pool & Spa seeks a variance from Section III.S.4. to permit the installation of a 
free-standing sign that does not meet required setbacks.  The property is located at 233 Monadnock 
Highway and is situated in the Business District.  The property is shown at Tax Map 19, Lot 64 and is 
owned by Monadnock Homestead, LLC.   

 
Public Hearing opened by the Chair at 7:07 p.m. 
 
Vice Chair Thibault seated himself, Mitchell, Rudgers, Geheran and Bryant for this hearing.  Terry Mark 
appeared before the Board and presented the application.   
 
Various board member stated that they are current or former customers of Clearwater, but did not feel 
that they had any conflicts in considering this matter. 
 
Mark stated that Clearwater’s sign had to be moved due to the Safford Drive project and the expansion 
of Route 12 (turning lane).  If the sign was to be constructed meeting the required setbacks, it would 
intrude on Clearwater’s parking lot.  Mark provided a comprehensive list of signs on Route 12, noting 
the setback from Route 12 and the fact that the vast majority of the signs do not meet the required 
setback. 
 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes 
January 11, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 



 
Carbonneau stated that the proposed location of the sign as presented in the application (and shown by 
the orange cones in the photographs) has been approved by Code Enforcement Officer Mike Jasmin and 
Fire Inspector Eric Mattson.  Carbonneau noted that the proposed location of the sign does not impede 
sight distance and meets requirements for setbacks from the fire hydrant.   
 
Geheran inquired if Mark would like the sign to be closer to Route 12 and Safford Drive.  Mark stated 
that he would like it to be closer, but is restricted due to sight lines and the location of the street signs.  
Thibault stated that the application should be considered as presented.  Public hearing closed at 7:25 
p.m. 
 
Chair Thibault reviewed the Checklist for Granting a Variance with the members of the Board. 
 

1. Could the variance be granted without being contrary to the public interest? 
All said:  yes 

2. Would the spirit of the ordinance be observed if the variance were granted? 
All said: yes and there would be no gain to the public should the variance be denied.  Mitchell noted 
that it was consistent with other signs on Route 12. 

3. Would the granting the variance do substantial justice? 
All said: yes and noted that the current location of the sign is a hazard.  In addition, the sign is 
consistent with other signs on Route 12. 

4. Could the variance be granted without diminishing surrounding property values? 
All said: yes, noting that there was not specific information presented on property values. 

5. Do special conditions of the property exist that distinguish it from other properties in the area?   
Board members felt that the special conditions included the impacts on the property from the 
construction of Safford Drive and the expansion of pavement on Route 12.  All said: yes 
a. Owing to the special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other property in the area, 

there is not a fair and substantial relationship between the general public purpose of the ordinance 
and the specific application of the provision to the property?   
All said: there is not a fair and substantial relationship.  

b. Is the proposed use a reasonable one?  
All said yes. 

 
Motion by Mitchell to grant the variance request from Terry Mark/Clearwater Pool & Spa from Section 
III.S.4. to permit the installation of a free-standing sign that does not meet required setbacks, the 
specific location of the sign being included in the application.  There was a second by Rudgers and all 
were in favor.      Motion passed. 

 
Motion to adjourn was made by Rudgers, seconded by Geheran and all were in favor. Motion passed. 
 
Adjournment at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Sara Carbonneau, Recording Secretary Pro Tem 
 

 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes 
January 11, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 


